
Planning Board Meeting – September 24, 2018                                                                              1 
 

Mr.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

OGUNQUIT PLANNING BOARD  
PUBLIC HEARING and REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING  

MINUTES 
 

DUNAWAY CENTER MAIN AUDITORIUM 
SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
1. DUNELAWN CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION – River Road – Map 7 Block 79 – 

GBD1, R, SLR – Proposed Amendments to the October 23, 2017 Planning Board 
Design Review and Site Plan Review Approvals.  Approved on October 23, 2017. 

 
John Lorden gave a brief overview of the project. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was anyone who wished to speak for, or against, this application; or 
Anyone who had any questions for the Applicant. There being no one Mr. Wilkos closed the 
Public Hearing at 6:05 p.m. 
 
2. JACKIE & RON, LLC - ANGELO’S – 355 Main Street – Map 7 Block 29 GBD2 – 

Proposed Amendment to the July 24, 2017 Planning Board Design Review and Site 
Plan Review Approvals. Approved on July 24, 2017   

 
Mr. Wilkos noted that this application will be tabled at the request of the Applicant. 
 
A. ROLL CALL –  
 
Members Present: Steve Wilkos (Chair) 
   Rusty Hayes (Vice Chair) 
   Muriel Freedman  
   Mark MacLeod 
   Jackie Bevins 
   Priscilla Botsford (1st Alternate) 
   
Also Present:  Scott Heyland, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
 
 

Town of Ogunquit 
Planning Board 
Post Office Box 875 
Ogunquit, Maine 03907-0875 
 
Tel: 207-646-9326 



Planning Board Meeting – September 24, 2018                                                                              2 
 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -  
 
C. MISSION STATEMENT – The Mission Statement was read by Mr. MacLeod. 
 
D. MINUTES –  August 13, 2018 and September 10, 2018 Regular Business Meeting  
  and Workshop. 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Minutes of August 13, 2018 as Amended. 
HAYES/BEVINS 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Minutes of the September 10, 2018 Workshop as Amended. 
HAYES/BEVINS 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Minutes of September 10, 2018 Regular Business Meeting 
as Amended. 
HAYES/BEVINS 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
E. PUBLIC INPUT – For any matter NOT already on this Agenda. 
 
Mr. Wilkos congratulated the Planning Board Members, the Conservation Commission, Town 
Attorney Natalie Burns, and the Land Use Office on the recent upholding of the Law Court Case 
LEONARD A. PIERCE et al., Trustees of 10 Beach Plum Lane and 12 Beach Plum Lane Trusts 
v. Town of Ogunquit: YOR-18-29.  
 
Peter Kahn noted that the Application for Jackie & Ron LLC had been tabled at the Applicant’s 
Request. He asked for clarification of the process; and where this case now stands.  
 
Mr. Wilkos responded that the application is still an open Planning Board Application and the 
Board will vote on the Applicants request to table later in this meeting.  
  
F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS –  
 
1. DUNELAWN CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION – River Road – Map 7 Block 79 – 

GBD1, R, SLR – Proposed Amendments to the October 23, 2017 Planning Board 
Design Review and Site Plan Review Approvals.  

 Approved on October 23, 2017. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that the Board held a Public Hearing and no one from the public asked to be 
heard. 
 
Mr. MacLeod asked if the proposed additional parking space will cause any problems with the 
proposed transformer. 
 
Mr. Heyland responded that if he determines that there will be any danger the Applicant may be 
required to install protective bollards adjacent to the transformer location. 
 
Mr. Lorden stated that the transformer is not accurately represented on the survey. It will be very 



Planning Board Meeting – September 24, 2018                                                                              3 
 

close to the dumpster and will not be in the near vicinity of the proposed new parking space. He 
does not foresee any problems; however if the Code Enforcement Officer determines there is a 
potential danger he will be happy to install protective bollards. 
 
Mr. Heyland added that the survey does indicate that there is a small portion of the driveway 
which is off the Applicant’s property.  
 
Mr. Lorden acknowledged that there is a portion of the driveway which is on the abutters’ 
property. However the DOT had just finished their work and there is a moratorium that the new 
paving may not be touched for five years. The Applicant is aware that this portion of their 
driveway is on the abutters’ property.  
 
At this time the Board reviewed the Standards of Article 11.7.C of the Ogunquit Zoning 
Ordinance for Design Review and found all Standards to be met. 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Approve the Design Review Application for DUNELAWN 
CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION – River Road – Map 7 Block 79 – GBD1, R, SLR. 
HAYES/BEVINS 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
At this time the Board reviewed the Standards of Article 6.7 of the Ogunquit Zoning Ordinance 
for Site Plan Review and Found all Standards to be met (See Findings of Fact for specifics). 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Approve the Site Plan Review Application for DUNELAWN 
CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION – River Road – Map 7 Block 79 – GBD1, R, SLR with 
the condition that the Applicant will install protective bollards around the transformer if 
the Code Enforcement Officer determines they are needed; and if that is required, bollard 
locations will be included on the Final Site Plan. 
MACLEOD/HAYES 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
2. JACKIE & RON, LLC - ANGELO’S – 355 Main Street – Map 7 Block 29 GBD2 – 

Proposed Amendment to the July 24, 2017 Planning Board Design Review and Site Plan 
Review Approvals. Approved on July 24, 2017. 

 
It was noted that when an applicant requests a tabling of an application, it is kept on the agenda 
and the verbiage is struck through so that the public is made aware that it will be tabled. 
However the Planning Board still needs to vote to approve the tabling. 
 
Mr. Bevins noted that at one time she had a financial interest in this property, however she no 
longer has any interest. Still, she will abstain from the discussion and from voting. 
 
Mr. Hayes stated that he wanted to explain why this Applicant requested the Application be 
tabled. 
 
Mr. Hayes noted, that at the most recent Select Board Meeting there was discussion by one 
Select Board Member who, while he did not mention this project by name, made it clear he was 
speaking about this application by stating “I live in the area where someone might put a big 
screen TV  and stay open until 1:00 in the morning; and I hear them already now! I don’t want to 
particularly do that.” Mr. Hayes added that it was public knowledge from the Planning Board’s 



Planning Board Meeting – September 24, 2018                                                                              4 
 

first meeting with the Applicant that he (the Applicant) was asking to put a TV outside; however 
nothing was said about a “big screen” TV; and that this Applicant was asking to remain open 
until 1:00 in the morning; and that this particular Select Board member lives behind this 
Applicant’s property. 
 
Mr. Hayes expressed his concern that misinformation was given to the public. He added that no 
one should be talking about an open application; this taints the due process for applicants. In 
order for everyone to come before the Planning Board and have a fair hearing he (Mr. Hayes) 
felt, as Vice Chair of the Planning Board, he needed to speak up at that Select Board Meeting. 
 
Mr. Hayes stated that the Applicant has requested the application be tabled so that he has time to 
speak with counsel.  
 
Mr. Hayes stated that there is a Code of Ethics for all Boards and Committees in the Town and 
there are several sections which state that no one should discuss open applications. He noted that 
the Select Board member, who made the comment, voted for the Code of Ethics on May 15, 
2018. He (Mr. Hayes) was surprised that this Select Board member would take the liberty to try 
and cloud this Application or sway opinions on this case.  
 
Mr. Hayes stated that he seconded Mr. MacLeod’s Motion because he (Mr. Hayes) feels very 
strongly that this applicant needs to be treated fairly; and he isn’t sure how the Planning Board is 
going to do that now. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked Mr. Hayes to explain why he thinks, what the Select Board Member did, was a 
“violation of the Code of Ethics”.  
 
Mr. Hayes referred to Page 8 of the Code of Ethics for Boards and Committees, item 15: 
 
“15.  Independence of Boards, Committees, and Commissions  
  
Members shall refrain from using their positions to unduly influence the deliberations or 
outcomes of any board, committee, or commission proceeding. Members should also refrain 
from bringing matters currently under discussion and review by their respective board up for 
discussion before any other board, committee, or commission unless expressly authorized to do 
so by affirmative vote of a majority of the Member’s board.”   
 
Mr. Hayes stated that Board members know that they are not suppose to talk about open 
Applications; and to speak about an open application in public, at a televised Select 
Board Meeting isn’t right. 
 
Ms. Botsford asked: if the Application is tabled does it become a Code Enforcement issue? 
 
Mr. Heyland responded that at some point it would become a Code Enforcement Issue. He would 
need to speak with the Town’s Attorney. He added that it cannot be tabled indefinitely. 
 
Mr. Wilkos added that this application is an “after the fact” application. 
 
Mr. Wilkos called for a vote on Mr. Macleod’s motion. 



Planning Board Meeting – September 24, 2018                                                                              5 
 

 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Table the Application for JACKIE & RON, LLC - ANGELO’S – 
355 Main Street – Map 7 Block 29 GBD2 
MACLEOD/HAYES 4:0 (Ms. Bevins abstained). 
 
G.  NEW BUSINESS –  
 
1. NANCY T. HUNT – 68 Pulpit Rock Road – Map 1 Block 19 – SLR/RP.  Site Plan 
 Review Application involving a pre 1930 structure.  Application to repair and 
 stabilize land area which was damaged by the March 2018 Storm. 
 
Nancy Hunt addressed the Board and introduced Loring DeAgazzio who will be her 
representative. 
 
Ms. Hunt explained that the wave action from the March 2018 storms eroded a portion of her 
lawn at the edge of the bedrock. She wants to repair the damage; and replace erosion control to 
prevent further erosion.  
 
Mr. Heyland informed the Board that due to the age of the structure on the property, the OHPC 
met with the Applicant and looked at this proposed project. The OHPC took no position. He 
added that, as a Site Plan Review, the application had been submitted to all required Town 
Department Heads.  
 
Mr. Heyland reviewed his September 18, 2018 Memo to the Board (a copy of which will be 
maintained in the Applicant’s Planning Board File). He added that the contractor’s intention is 
to complete the work within a day or two at the most; and that the contractor is Certified to work 
in Shoreland Zoned Areas. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted memos from Town Department Heads, none of which expressed any questions 
or  concerns. 
 
Mr. Heyland noted that a resident informed him that this Applicant’s property is located near a 
feature known as “Seacave at Jack’s Cove”, with is labeled as a critical area in the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan. The Land Use Office staff spoke with Conservation Commission ExChair, 
Mike Horn, who lives in that area, and Harbor Master Fred Mayo who both stated that the 
proposed work site is not in proximity to the Seacave; and the proposed work will not effect it. 
 
Ms. Bevins asked if the Applicant has obtained a Permit by Rule from the State to work in that 
area. 
 
Mr. Heyland responded that they have already obtained a Permit by Rule from the State. 
 
Mr. MacLeod suggested the Conservation Commission (CONCOM) should provide input to the 
Planning Board. The Board agreed that the Recording Secretary should provide a copy of the 
Application to the CONCOM and request input from them. 
 
Ms. Botsford asked how much fill was going to be put in. 
 



Planning Board Meeting – September 24, 2018                                                                              6 
 

Mr. Heyland responded that the Applicant proposes importing 40 cubic yards of material. 
 
Mr. MacLeod noted that the Code Enforcement Officer has checked off Item 6.6.C.3.V on the 
Submissions Checklist as “not applicable”. This item covers “Areas within or adjacent to the 
proposed site which have been identified as high or moderate value wildlife habitat by the Maine 
Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife or within the comprehensive plan”.   
 
Mr. Heyland responded that he can look again; and he added that DEP looks at that question as 
part of their State Permitting. He based his interpretation on the State’s review. 
 
The Board was satisfied that, based upon the State’s review,  this project will not effect high or 
moderate valued wildlife habitat.  
 
At this time the Board reviewed the Site Plan Submissions Checklist and the Code Enforcement 
Officer’s Memo regarding Not Applicable Submissions and found all requirements to have been 
met.  
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Find the Application for NANCY T. HUNT – 68 Pulpit Rock Road 
– Map 1 Block 19 – SLR/RP complete. 
MACLEOD/HAYES 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
The Board agreed that a Site Visit would be helpful to them, and that a Public Hearing is 
required. 
 
A Site Visit was scheduled to take place on October 9, 2018 at 4:30 p.m.  The Applicant was 
asked to flag or otherwise mark the area to be impacted by the proposed work. 
 
A Public Hearing was scheduled to take place on October 9, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
H. CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER BUSINESS – 
 
Mr. Heyland noted that the Board had received correspondence from a resident whose property 
abuts a commercial property. She has asked about installing a fence over 6’ tall, which is not 
allowed. The resident wants to install an 8’ tall fence which would violate the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The Board discussed the use of buffering, such as vegetation, something other than fencing.   
 
I. OTHER BUSINESS –  
 
1. Continued Discussion Regarding Ogunquit Zoning Article 2 Definitions of Restaurant 
 Types Workshop. 
 
It was agreed that future workshops would be helpful. The Board agreed to wait until after the 
November Town Meeting to schedule the 3rd workshop on this topic. 
 
Mr. Heyland asked the Board to look at outdoor seating, and waiting area seating, and how these 
seats are counted as part of the overall allowed occupancy load. 
 



Planning Board Meeting – September 24, 2018                                                                              7 
 

Ms. Freedman asked for a workshop to discuss the Town’s Charter and Zoning Ordinance so that 
they are made to comply with each other. 
 
She noted that the Charter calls for the Planning Board to oversee the Comprehensive Plan 
Review, and that it may not be allowed for the Chairman of the Planning Board to sit as the 
Chairman of the Comprehensive Plan Committee. She suggested it is important for the Board to 
determine what is allowed and what is not. 
 
The Board agreed that it would look into the question.  
 
J. ADJOURNMENT – 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Adjourn at 7:35 p.m. 
HAYES/FREEDMAN 5:0 UNANIMOUS     
 
 
 
     Respectfully Submitted 

     Maryann Stacy 
     Maryann Stacy 
     Town of Ogunquit 
     Planning Board 
     Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
Approved on November 13, 2018 
 
 


